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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Swara Baby Products Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Swara Baby Products Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibili
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scop
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal ¢
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 48(5) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

+ provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 48(8) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall;

* directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in a
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
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*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Kalpesh Khandelwal

Partner
Place: Pune Membership No.: 133124
Date: 10 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22133124A0SMRN8912

\).4

Page 4 of 12



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Swara Baby Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets accordingly, clause 3(i)(a) (B) is not

(i) (b)

(c)

(e)

(ii) (@)

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 2 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit , has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company except as follows:

(All amounts in rupees millions)

Quarter Name of | Particulars | Amount Amountas | Amoun | Whether
bank as per reported in t of return/st
books of the differe | atement
account quarterly nce subsequ
return/ ently
statement rectified
March-22 HDFC Finished 108.49 102.50 5.99
goods
March 22 HDFC Raw 510.72 474.75 35.97
Material
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Quarter Name of | Particulars | Amount Amountas | Amoun | Whether
bank . as per reported in t of return/st
books of the differe | atement
account quarterly nce subsequ
return/ ently
statement rectified
March 22 HDFC Trade 261.77 267.79 -6.01 Yes
Receivable
]
Dec-21 HDFC Finished 74.11 71.53 2.59 Yes
goods
Dec-21 HDFC Trade 267.63 269.33 -1.70 Yes
Receivable
s

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or
granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to its
employees during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity as below:
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(Continued)

(All amounts are in Rupees millions)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate amount
during the year
Others- Loans to
KMP

22.50

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet
date
Others*- Loans to
KMP

22.50

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet
date

Others*- Loans to
employees

0.22

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, security given
during the year and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature
of loans and guarantees provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our ex
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or adva
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Swara Baby Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

repayment.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security
given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there
have been slight delays ranging between 2 to 28 days in a few cases of Withholding tax
amounting to Rs.3.40 Million, Goods and service tax amounting to Rs.0.77 Million and
Professional tax amounting to Rs. 0.26 Million.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtaj :\
N
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall exa jontofithe ‘\\f’ \

balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term bdsis’ ‘ﬁé b@l \C \
used for long-term purposes by the Company. _( n Park |
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(e)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made b .

the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable./.f' R ( N

s, e

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment/C mpénres
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements 8f, clalise - ..\
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. () 35738, Kyragagn Par

T
"
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (§) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

% :

Kalpesh Khandelwal

Partner

Place: Pune Membership No.: 133124
Date: 10 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22133124A0SMRN8912

\
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Swara Baby Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph ‘2(A)(f)’ under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Swara Baby
Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a proces
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepar:
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

KXo -

Kalpesh Khandelwal

Partner
Place: Pune Membership No.: 133124
Date: 10 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22133124A0SMRN8912
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Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat As st
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,185.05 41181
Capital work-m-progress 5 80.77 1247
Right-of-use assets 6 86.18 87.12
Financial assets T 66.19 24.70
Other non-current assets 8 215.41 24818
Total non-current assets 1,633.60 B84.88
Current assets
Inventories g 642.51 427.82
Financial assets
(&) Trade receivables 10 261.77 255,18
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 11 10.28 40.10
{c) Bank balances other than (b) above 12 47.80 84,80
Loan 13 2272 0.52
Other financial assets 14 86.62 7.69
Other current assels 15 45.77 52.24
Total current assets 1,117.47 B78.35
Total assets 2,751.07 1,763.34
=
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 251.87 251.87
Other equity 17 1,342.18 1,028.74
Total equity 1,594.03 1.280.81
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a) Borrowings. 18 239.05 99.71
{b) Lease liability B 6.23 823
Provisions 19 2.41 028
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 33 54.61 47.52
Other nan-current liabilities 20 119.43 772
Total non-current liabiliti 421.73 182.16
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{8) Cumrent borrowings 21 120,97 63.24
{b) Lease liability 5 0.69 0.69
(c) Trade payables 22
i) total ¢ ing dues of micro ori and small enterprises 29.28 18.61
fijtotal outstanding dues of crediters other than micre enterprise and small
enterprises. 279.50 186.22
{d) Other financial liabilities 23 2234 10.42
Other current liabiities 24 271.04 12.86
Provisions 19 243 10.52
Total current liabilities 735.31 300.56
Total liabilities 1,157.04 48272
Total equity and labilities 2,751.07 1.763.34
y of sig ing policies 24
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial statements 548

As per our report of even date allached
ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Ri Ne. - 1012

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Swara Baby Products Private Limited
CIN: U36939WB2016PTC218399
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Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Purchase of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance cosls
Depreciation and amertisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic eamning per share (INR)
Diluted earning per share (INR)

Summary of significant accounting policies
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. - 101248W/W-100022

Notes

25
26

27
27
28
29
30
31
32

33
33

34
34

2-4
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Kalpesh Khandelwal
Partner
Membership No: 133124

Place: Pune
Date: \C Auvsast o
UDIN: 22ADZ T\ 24 ACSMMRMTA VL

Gautam Sharma
Director
DIM: 0B776136

Place: Pune

Date; % Auﬁ:x%\, 2c2

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

3,256.10 1,931.19
68.27 25.21
3,324.37 1,956.40
2,200.45 1,107.83
275.81 258.81
(74.48) 16.01
108.87 71.88
30.86 24.54
72.55 3845
305.94 226.66
2,920.00 1,745.18
404.37 211.22
83.77 47.42
7.09 37.09
90.88 84.51
313.51 126.71
(0.08) =
(0.08) 3
313.43 126.71
25.40 10.27
12.44 6.01

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Swara Baby Products Private Limited
CIN: U36999WB2016PTC218399

Alok Birla
Managing Director
DIN: 00232079

Place: Pune

Date: % Auaguse2022 Date: 5 M¢3-C DB D

L)
Rucha Pande
Company Secretary

Membership No: 45553

Place: Pune



Swara Baby Products Private Limlted
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars. Year ended ‘Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 404.37 211.22
Adjustments for:
iation and n 72.55 39.45

Finance cost 30.85 2454
Imtarest income (6.90) (8.70)
Deferred Income on Government Grant 153.31) =
Operating profit before werking capital changes 447.57 286.51
Changes in working capital
Incraase in frade payables 105.90 7224
{Increase) in inventores (214.70) {202.24)
{Increasa) in trads recervables (6.59) {173.94)
Increase / (Decrease) in ather current liabiities 239.04 (76.00)
{Decrease)l increasa in other financial liabiities 10.09 {17.82)
Increase in other non-current liabiities - 2n.73
Increase in Provisions 1.31 11.50
{Increase) in other financial assets - (25.94)
Decreasa [ (Increase) in olher current assets 16.48 {38.18)
{Incraase} in nen-current assels (T4.67) {164.24)
{Increase} in non-current financial assats (4.28) -
Cash g from il 52014 (321.28)
Income Tax Paid {91.83) (47.42)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (&) 42831 {368.89)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assels (705.22) {193.77)
Proceeds from bank deposis 36.99 (77.43)
Interast raceived 0.7 461
Loan ghven during the year {22.20) -
Mat cash flow from Investing actlvities (B) (689.72) [266.58)
Cash flow from Financing activities
Government Grant received 54.01 =
Proceeds from Borrowings 311.60 (225.89)
Repaymem! of Borrowings (106.78)
Interest paid on Bormowings {26.54) 2287
Pr ds fram | y a 50.00 =

pay of pany b (50.00) g
Proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares - 87368
Principal paid on lease liabliies {0.69} 4.52
Net cash flow from financing activities [C) 23159 67498
Net decreass in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+Cj (29.82) 3048
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 4010 0.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.28 40.10
Companents of cash and cash equivalent 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 21 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of:
Cash on hand 0.34 057 0.44
Balances with banks:
Balances with bank in current accounts 9.94 39.53 047
Total cash and cash equivalent 10.28 40.10 .81
Changes in liakilities arising from finaneing activities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings (refer note 18 and note 21);
Opening balance 161.83 204.56
Amount borrowed during tha yaar 31160 9.04
Repaysment of borrowings {106.78) {51.77)
Amortised cost and other adjustiment -
Closing balanca 365.65 161.83
Finance cost (refer note 30):
Opening balance 112 -
Finance cost during the year 3051 24.18
Amount paid during the year (including interest on lease liablity) (27.24] {23.07)
Amaortised cost and other adjustment
Cloaing balance 4.33 112
Summary of significant accounting policias 2-4
The accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial statements 544
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Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
(A) Equity share capital

As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of [Face value of Rs. 10] each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Opening as on 01 April 2021 12.34 123.39 12.34 123.39
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - . - o
Restated balance as at 01 April 2021 12.34 123.39 12.34 123.38
Add: issue during the year - - - -
Closing balance 12.34 123.39 12.34 123.39

As at As at
(B) 0.1% Compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Shares of [Face value of Rs. 10] each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Opening as on 01 April 2021 12.85 128.48 - -
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period emors - - - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2021 12,85 128.48 - =
Add: issue during the year - - 12.85 128.48
Clasing balance 12.85 128.48 12.85 128.48

(C} Other equity
Particulars Secur‘mes Retained Total
P earnings
Balance as at 01 April 2021 871.06 157.67 1.028.73
Changes in equity share capital due to prior pariod errors = < b
Restated balance as at 01 April 2021 871.06 157.67 1.028.73
Profit for the year - 31351 313.51
Premium on issue of shares during the year & = »
871.06 47118 1,342.24
Total other comprehensive income for the year - (0.08) (0.08)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 871.06 47110 1.342.16
Particulars Securilies Retained Total
premium

Balance as al 1 April 2020 125.88 30.96 156.83
Changes in equity share capital due to prior peried errors - - =
Restated balance as at 01 April 2020 125.88 30.96 156.83
Profit for the year - 126.71 126.71
Premium on issue of shares during the year 74518 - 745.19
Balance as at 31 March 2021 871.08 157.67 1,028.73

Summary of significant accounting policies
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. - 101248W/W-100022

Kalpesh Khandelwal
Partner
Membership No: 133124

Place: Pune .
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Swara Baby Products Private Limited

Notes f

ing part of the Fi ial S ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 General Information

Swara Baby Products Pvt Ltd (the Campany’) (CIN: U36998WB2016PTC218389) is & private limited d in the busi of
manufacturing and dealing in baby care products mainly in diapers for kids. The Company has its registered office at 17, Crooked Lane,
Kolkata - 700 069 (West Bengal) and production unit at Plot No, 381 to 388, Sec 3, Pithampur Industrial Area, Pithampur, District - Dhar,
Indore - 454 775, Madhya Pradesh.

2

21

(@)

]

fc

(d)

Basis of Prej ion of Fi | St

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These fi ial sta s have been prepared in with Indizn Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rulas, 2015 and Companias
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The financial statements were authorised far issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 02/08/2022

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2020 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified
under the section 133 of the Act, read with with paragraph 7 of the C s (A ) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP),

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 are the second set of
with Ind AS.

prepared in

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except whers a newly issusd accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an exisfing accounting standard requires & change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prep on a historical cost ion on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value (refe policy on fi ial ir as required by relevant Ind AS.

All assets and liabililies are classified into current and non-current :-

Assels

An asset is classified as current when It satisfies zny of the following criteria:

(a) itis expected to be realised in, or is i led for sale or ion in, the Campany's normal operating cycle;

(b} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

(c) itis expected o be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) itis cash or cash eguivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for atleast 12 months after
the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All ather assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A lizbility is classified as cumrent when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(&) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) itis due to be settled within 12 months afier the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date. Terms of & liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial iabiities. All other lisbilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time the of assets for fng and their isation in cash or cash equivalents. The

perating cycle of the Company is less than 12 manths,

Use of estimates

The p ion of inc ity with Ind AS reqs the M to make esti and pii that
affect the reparted amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the
year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheel date. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial are based upan the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the
date of the financial stalements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates. if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are
revised and in any fulure years affected, Refer Note 3 for detailed df: ion an esti and |

Going Concemn

These financial statements have been prepared on & going concem basis. The management has, given the significant uncariainties
arising out of the outbreak of COVID-18, as explained in the Mote 3.1{c) of the Financial Statements, assessed the cash flow
projections and available liquidity for 2 pericd of at least twelve months from the date of these financial statements. Based on this
evaluation, Managemant belisves that he Company will be able 1o continue as a 'geing concern’ in the foreseeable fulure and for a
period of atleast twelve menths from the date of these financial statements based on the following:

(i) Expected future operating cash flows based on business projections, and

(ii) Avaiable cash and cash equivalent balances.

{iii) Available credit faciities with its bankers,

Based on the above factors, Management has concluded that the "going cencarn” ion is iate. A ingly, the

financial statements do not include any adj. ding the recs bility and classificati éflhe camying amount of assets
and classification of fiabilities that might result, should the Company be unable to conitnue as a geing concem.




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.2
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2.4
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Prooertv. olant and eouioment
Froperty, plant and equip are stated at ical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Campany and the cost of the item can be measured
relnabhr The carrying amount of any ted for 25 a assetis ized when replaced. All other repairs
and & are charged to Stat 1t of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as

capital ad under other rent assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital
work-in-progress’.
D iati thod il d useful lives
The Company depreciates proparty, plant and equipment over their esti d useful lives using the siraight line method. The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:
nd egui 1t
Leasehold imorovement® Lease period
Plant & Machinary 10 vears
Furniture and Fixtures 10 vears
Electrical Installation 10 vears
Vehicle 10 vears

Building (other than factory buildings) other than 30 years
RCC Frame Struciure

Office Equioment 5 years
Comouters:
-Servers 6 vears

-End user devices such as, desktops, laplops etc. 3 years

* Leasehold imorovements are amortized over the lease period. which corresconds with the useful lives of the assets,

Based on the technical experis assessment of useful life, certain items of prop plant and equi are being d iated over
useful lives different from the prescedbed useful lives under il to the Ci ies Act, 2013, M, beli that such
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition, Depreciation on
salefdeduction from property plant and aqurpment is pruvldeu up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may
be. Gains and losses on di are d by paring p ds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of
Profit and Loss under 'Other Income'.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically al each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, 8s appropriate.

Other intanaible assets
Intanaible assets are stated at isition cost. net of
The Company amertized intangible assets over their estimated useful lives usmn the straight line method.

Intangible assets with finlte lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication thal the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amartization pericd and the amertization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life zre reviewed at least at
each financial year end,

Fomlgn currency transactions

F A tafi
lems :ncluded in !hs ﬂnanc»al sta‘temenl.s are measuled using the currency of the primary ecanomic environment in which the entity
‘the I y'). The are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional

and presentation curency.

Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency st the date of the transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in
foreign exchange rate between the fion date and seftl date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monelary assets and liabilities in foreign ies are i at the year end st the exchange rate prevailing at the year end
and the ge diff are ised in the S 1t of Profit and Loss.
Non-maonetary ilems that are in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates of the initial fransactions.

Fair value measu mmenl
The C 1i such as,

at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 2sset or paid to transfer a lizbility in an ordery transaction between market
participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the pr intion that the ion 1o sell the asset
of transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the mest advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valustion techniques that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevan! observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The
C 'S ines the policies and procedures for fair value measurement such as derivative instrument.

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is or disclosed in the i ial are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigrificant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

> Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

26

a7

)

b}

28

Revenue recoanition
Sale of aoods

Revenue fram the sale of goods is i when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred lo the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duly and net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates, value added taxes, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third
parties,

Renderina of services

The Company primarily earns revenue from Job work Charges, Revenue from Job work charges is recognised when contral of the
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those services.

Revenue is maasured at the fair value of the deration received or le. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of indirect
taxes, frade allowances, rebates and amounts collected an behall of third paflres &nd is not racogmsed In Inslances where there is
uncertainty with regard to ulimate collection. In such cases ue is recognised an y of

Other Income

Interest Income is i on & basis of interest method as set out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no
significant inty as lo ility or exists.
Taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and defarred 1ax. are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the
yaar.

Current income tax

Currant tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offsel where the enlity has a legally enforceable right ta offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is pravided in full, using the balance shee: PP 1, an temporary diffe arising b the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying in Defarred income tax is also not accounted for if it arses

from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction cther than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax foss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacled or substantislly enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the refated deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax labiity is settied,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused 1ax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

fanag iodically i it Iaken in tax retuns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to It blishes p where on tha basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsat when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority,

\
Current and tax is ized In § of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or direcily in equity. In this case. the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively,

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right o use the underlying asset for the laase term at the lease
commencement date, The cost of the right of use asset d at i icn shall L of the amount of the initial
measurement of lease lability adjusted for any lzase payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 1o be incurred by the lesses in dismantling and remaving the
underlying asset or lestnnng the undanmng assel or sn!a on which it is located. The right-of use assels subsequently measured at
cost less any lated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the jease
ligbility. The right of use asset i 15 dspraclated in the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term
or useful life of right-of-use essel R:ghl—of use assets are tested for impairment where there any indication that their carrying
may not be loss, if any, is recognizad in the statement of profit and loss.




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part ef the F ial for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily detarminad. If
that rate cannot be readly determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar
characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments,
residual value guafantees exer:lsa price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and

of for inating the lease, if the Ieass term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The
Iease liability is uently re-mm d by i g the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease hability, reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made ancl re-maasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lzase
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. Whera the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced fo zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liabiity, the Company recognises any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss,

The Company applies the shorl-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases of building (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 manths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low
value assels recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term lzases and leases of low-value assels are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing activity in statemeant of cash fiows.

2.9 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product o its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and spare parts are valued &t lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
purchase price, ing those sub ly recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorilies), freight
inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition. In defermining the cost,
weighted average cost method is used.,
Work in progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
work in progress and manufactured finished goods is delarmined on the weighted average basis and comprises direct material, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of traded goods is
determined on a weighted average basis,

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of 's esti based on and market of the
inventories,
Met realizable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary cwrse of busi less the esti d cost of jon and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on item by item basis.

2.10 Imoairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any cbjectlve evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
finencial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company the asset's r ble amount and the amount of
impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and recoverabla amoun!. Losses are
recegnized in Statemant of Prefit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Campany considers that there are no
relistic prospects of racovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related cbjectively to an event ing after the impai WS gnised, then the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Tne recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the assel. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assels are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash in flows from
continuing use that are largely indepandent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit’).

24

Provisions and centinaent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the cbligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate thal reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific 1o the lizbility, When discounting is used, the i in the provision dus to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

The Company records a provision for issioning costs. D issioning costs are provided at the present value of
expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part of the cost of the particular asset. The
cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning fiability. The unwinding of
the discount is expensed as Incurred and recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future
costs of d ing are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the
discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset,
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Contingent liabiliies are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
C y or a present obligation thal arises from past events where il is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made,

Cash and cash eauivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank
overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in valus.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalenis include cash on hand, cash in banks and short-lerm
deposits net of bank overdraft,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
anaother entity.

Financial assets

Initial reccanition and measurement

At Initfal rec i fi ial asset is at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
of loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subseauent measurement

For purposes of sub: it . fi ial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amartized cosl; or

b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the enlity's i maodel for ing the ial assels and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contraciual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance incoma
using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair valye through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for mﬁecﬂun of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows rep salely 1 of f ipal and interest, are measured &t fair value
through other comprehensive income [FVOCI). Movameants in the camying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recagnition
of impairment gains or losses, interest ravenus and foreign e*change gains and Iosses w}'um are recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the ive gain or loss p ized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ ticsses] Jnharast income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method,

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets thal do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent considaration recognised by an acquirer in & business combinalion to which Ind AS103 applies are classified
as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make &an irmevoceble election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to PEL, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Imoairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recagnition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and FYOCI,

Farr ition of impai loss on fi ial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether thare has been a
significan! increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life tima ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12 month ECL is & portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the vear end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Comp with the and all the
cash flows that the enlity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the ongma! EIR. When estimating the cash fiows, an
enlity is reguired to consider all contractuzl terms of the ial instrument (i t, extension etc.) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rara cases when the expecied life of tha financial instrument cannot be
estimated refiably, then the entity is required to use the r i C | term of the financial instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payment is more than 30 days past
due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the year is r ized as ir in the of profit
and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured al amortized cost is presented as an alluwance i.e. as an integral part
of the measurement of those assels in the balance sheel. The sllowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meels
write off crileriz, the Company does not reduce impairment aliowance from the gross carrying amount.
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Derecoanition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the rights to raceive cash flows from the financial ssset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights {o receive the cash flows of the fi ial asset, but @ coniractual
flows to one or mare recipients.

igation to pay the cash

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is der only if ially all risks and of
ownership of the financial asset is transfered. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial assel is not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilties are i at initial r i as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost,
as appropriale.

All fi ial lighilities are i initially at fair value and. in the case of bomowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaclion costs.

Subsequent measurement

The of fi 12l lizbilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair valua through profit or loss include financial Ilah'llnas haEcI lar lradlng and ﬂnanclal lizbilities designated

upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Separated emb are also classi as held for trading

unless they are i as effective hedging ir . Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and b ings are sub I at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in S‘latermm aof Profit arbd Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecoqnition
A fi ial liability is der ized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lendar on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Fability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the original iability and the recagnition of
& new liabiity. The difference in the ve carrying is ized in the it of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asseis and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enfarceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or rezlize the asset and settle the hiability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the avent of defaull, insalvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Convertible preference shares
Convertible praferance shares are treated as equity based on the terms of the contract and in accordance with IndAs.

Employee benefits

Ehart-term oblioations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected lo be settled whally within 12 manths after the
end of the year in which the employees render the related service ara r ized in respact of yees' services up to the end of
the year and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The lizbilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance shest.

Other long-t ployee benefit

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Centribution towards pravlderll fund is rnade tu Ihe regulatory ities, whera the C. has no further
Such benefils are classified as Defined Contri as the C does nat carry any further obligations,

apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged ta the Statement of Profit and Less.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made fo the regulatory
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not camy any further obligations, aparn from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan”) covering eligitle employees in accordance

wrth Ihe Payrnent of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
ion or termination of ampl of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary. The Company's liability is

actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in

the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.
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Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected o be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are traauad as short term employes benefits. The obligation towards the same iz measured at the expected

cost of gcct g as the additional amount expected to be paid as a resull of the unused entitlement as
at the year end.
A lated . which are axp d to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year

end ere ireated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be
216 Government arants
Government grants are recognized initially as deferred income at fair value when ©
a) There is reasonable assurance that they will be received,
b) The Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant
They are then racognized in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis.

only on di inuation of service by employee.

Grants that £ the Comp for incurred are recegnized in profit or loss as other opersting revenue on a
systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are recognized.

2.17 Eamnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year to equity sf by the
weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year. Eamings considered in ascertaining the Company's
eamings per share is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any atiribulable tax thereto for the
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented is adjusted for
evenls, such as bonus shares, other than the conversicn of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares
ing. without a change in r

Far the of calculating diluted ings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weaghled average number of shares outstanding during the vear is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

218 Borrowina costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly atiributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized during the pericd of time that is required lo complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assels are assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investmeant income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their i on lifying assets is from the
barrowing costs eliginle for capitalization. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

2.9 Segment reporting
The Company primarily operates in trading & fi g of baby p which is the only reporiable segment.

2.20 Rounding offamnunts
All amounts di and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest thousands as per requirement of
Schedule lil of the Act, unissa otherwise stated.

3 Sianificant ina jud i and i
The ion of fi fal its requires management to make judg i and { that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the i i , and the disclosure of contingant liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a malerial adjustment to the carmying amount of
assels or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1 Use of estimates and iudaements
The key assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation unceriginty at the year end date, that have a
significan! risk of causing & material adjustment to the camying amcunls of assets and Ilablhllas within the next financial year, are
described below, The Company based itz ions and esti 5 le when the financial statements were
pre: . Existing ci ces and L about future dev&inpman!s however, may change due to marke! changes or

circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

tal Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused lax losses IO ihe extent thal it is probable that taxable profit will be available agains!
which the losses can be utifized, Significant is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that

can be recognized, based upon the Ilkely timing and the Ievel 01 future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The Company neither hava any taxable temporary difference nor any lax planning epperiunities avaiabls that could panly supporl

the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined that it cannot recognize deferred
tex assets on the tax losses carried forward except for the unabsorbed depreciation. Refer Nete 33,

1)

Defined benefit olans (aratuitv benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are delermined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, fulure salary incresses and mortality rates. Due to the in the ion and
its long-term nature, & defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to in thase ions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each year end.
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The principal ions are the di and salary growth rate, The discount rale is based upon the market yields available on
government bonds at the accounting date with a term that that of liabilifies. Salary i rate takes into account of
inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factors on long term basis. For detals Refer Nate 35,

Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID 19

COVID 18 pandemic has rapidly spread throughout the world, including Indla Govern ments in India and across the world hava

taken significant measures to curb the spread of the virus including imposing and i in

Managernent believes that it has taken into account all the pessible impact of known evems arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the
of fi including but not limited to its assessment of Company’s liquidity and gaing concern, recoverable

values of ils property, plant and equipment and the net realisable values of other assets. However, given the effect of these

lockdown and restrictions on the overall economic activity, the impact assessment of COVID-19 on the above mentioned financial

is subject to estimation certainties due lo ils nature and duration and, accardingly, the actual impacts in future
may be different from those estimated as at the date of approval of these Financial statements. The Company will continue ta
menitor any 1o future ic conditions and consequential impact on its financial statements.

In addition to the above significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments, following are the
other estimates used in the financial statements:

« Note 2.9 - Inventory valuation;

* Note 2.2 - measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

= Note 2.16 - Government grant recognition

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies naw standard or amendments 1o the existing standards under Companies ([rldjan
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to fime, On 23 March 2022, MCA ded tha Companies (Indian A q
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April 2022, as balow:

Ind AS 103 - Relerence to conceptual framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recagnition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and iabilities in the Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting under
Indian A dards {C: | F ) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not s!gnrﬁcanﬂy changs lhe requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to

have any significant impact in its

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of praperty, plant and equipment amounts received from

selling lems p while the pany is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Cornpany does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of
its property, plant and equi in its fi

Ind AS 37 - Onerous contracts - Costs of fulfilling a contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that ralate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a confract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that coniract [examples would be direct labour, matarials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification, and the Campany
does not expect the i to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an enlity includes when it applies the “10 percent’ test of Ind AS 108 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial lizbility. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements,

Ind AS 116 = Annual improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendmen!s remove the illustration of the it of | by the lessor in crder to resolve any
q the tr of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives wera describad in
that fllustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial stataments,
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5 a. Property, plant and

Gross block Depreciation Net block

Al Additions Deductions Asat iz at For the year Deductions Ag.pt As ol AL

1 April 2021 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Computers 4.04 392 = 196 144 1.64 - 3.08 4.88 260
Buitdings 895.18 152.53 - 24772 7.85 5.30 - 12,84 23477 B7.53
E i &i i 15.86 28.75 - 44 62 4.36 3.15 - 7.51 3r.1 11.50
Plant & Machineries 363.29 633.81 - 99710 E6.04 5893 - 124.57 87213 237.25
Furniture & Fixtures 10.10 2150 - 31.80 1.80 141 = 3 28.3% 8.30
Office Equipment 3.79 4.27 - 808 1.36 0.89 - 2.25 5.81 2.44
Mator Vehicles 267 0.07 - 274 0.48 029 - 0.78 1.96 218
Total (A) 49485 544 84 = 1.339.79 2314 71.61 = 15475 1,185.05 41181
Capital Work in Progress 11217 74.38 B05.78 BO.77 - - = - BO.77 112,17
Tatal (8) B07.12 1.618.22 B05.78 1.420.56 8314 T1.61 - 154.75 1.265.82 523.99
b. Tangible assets under development

For the year ended
2022 2021
Balance at the beginning 11247 -
Additions Tra3e 137.38
Capitalised during the year BD5.78 25.19
Ea]gnis i ihg 5 B0.77 11217
a. Proparty, plant and
Gross block Depreciation Net block
As at As at As at As at As at As at

Additions Deductions For the year Deductions

1 April 2020 31 March 2021 1 April 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Computers 1.69 236 = 404 0.64 0.80 - 1.44 280 1.05
Buildings 95.18 * - 95.18 4,88 278 - 765 87.53 2030
i ts & i { 15.72 .14 % 15.86 2.87 149 B 4.36 11.50 12.86
Piant & Machineries 345.89 17.41 - 363.28 33.64 3240 - 65,04 207.25 31224
Furniture & Fixiures 7.33 277 - 10.10 0.85 0.85 - 1.80 8.30 5.38
Office Equipment 2.58 1.23 - 378 0.83 0.53 - 1.36 244 1.73
Moter Vehicles 135 1.28 - 287 0.33 0.18 - 0.45 218 1.07
Total (A) 488,76 25,19 - 494.95 4413 3.1 - 83.14 411.81 42563
Capital Work in Progress 137.38 25,18 112,17 - - - - 11217 -
Total (B} 4869.78 162.55 25.18 607.12 44.13 38.01 - 83,14 52389 42563

b. Tangible assets under development

For the year ended
2021 2020
Balance at the beginning - -
Additions 137.38 22218
Capilalised during the vesr 25.19 222,18

Ealance at the End 11217 -
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Ageing schedule of Capital-work-in progress (including the project whose completion is overdue)

As at 31 March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

CwiIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress BO.77 80.77

Projects temporarily suspended 5 2 =l = =

Project wise ageing schedule of capital-work-in progress (including the project whose completion is overdue)

As at 31 March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress B0.77 80.77
Projects - -] - =
Swara Baby Products Pvt Ltd Unit 2 80.77 - - . 80.77
Projects temporarily suspended = # & i H

Note: There are no capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

As at 31 March 2021

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

cwip

Projects in progress 112.17 = - - 112.17

Projects temporarily suspended 5 a - . .

As at 31 March 2021

Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 112,17 112.17
Projects

Swara Baby Praducts Pvi Ltd - 11247 - - - 112.17
Expansion

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Note: There are no capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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6 Right-of-use assets

Balance as on 1 April 2020
Additions

Depreciation for the year
Balance as on 31 March 2021

Balance as on 1 April 2021
Additions

Depreciation for the year
Balance as on 31 March 2022

Land Total
31.16 31.16
56.41 56.41
(0.44) (0.44)
87.12 87.12
87.12 87.12
(0.95) (0.95)
86.18 86.18

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Current lease liabilities

MNon-current lease liabilities

Total lease liabilities

The movement in lease liabilities during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Opening balance

Addition

Interest cost accrued during the year
Payments during the year

Closing Balance

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

0.69 0.69
6.23 6.23
6.92 6.92

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

6.92 2.15
- 5.21
0.69 0.25
(0.69) (0.69)
6.92 6.92
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7 HNon- current financial assets
Security deposits
Government grans recaivables
Others.

8 Other non-current assets
Capital advances
with g horiti
Total other non-current other assets

Inventories

Raw material in stock (including Goods-in-trasit
amounling to amount 43.50 miflion (PY : amount 47,75
milian)

Work in progress in slock

Finished goods in stock

Store and spares parts including packing material

=

Trade receivable

Secured, considered good
Unsecured
-Considersd good

Further classified as:

Receivabla from related parties
Receivable from others

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 202

_ 3 March2022  _31March 2021

7.56 331
58.56 21.32
0.07 0.07
66.19_ 2470
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
28.85 137.28
1BE.56 111.89
215.41 24,18

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

510.72 383.35
4.23 3.45
108.49 34.73
19.07 6.23
Biz51_ a8
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
261.77 255.18
261.77 255.18
1.18 L]
260.59 255.18
261.77_ 25518

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months |6 months = 1 year 1-2 yrs 23 yrs Mor;:an 3 Total
Undi i Trade - d good 178.98 73.74 5.58 1.10 0.14 0.05 260.59
Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - . - - - -
Undi i Trade Recei — cradit impaired - - - = - » -
Related Parties 1.18 - - - - - 118
Disputed Trade R bl id good - - - - - - &
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
i in credit risk - - - - - = -
Disputed Trade les — credit imp - - - - - - .
Total 18116 73.74 5.58 1.10 0.14 0.05 261.77
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2021

Particulars Mot Due Less than 6 months |6 months — 1 year 1-2 yrs 2-3 yrs Mmev::an 3 Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 171.78 55,38 23.99 2.97 0.05 - 255.18
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant -
increase in credit risk - - = - A 2
Undi: Trade Receivables — credit impaired = = 5 - - % “
Related Parties - # - - = - 4
Disputed Trade e5— considered good - = - = = & =
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have =
increase in credit risk - - - - - =
Disputed Trade Recealvables — credit | - = - & e - a
Total 171.78 55.38 2398 3.87 - - 255.13




Swara Baby Products Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)
11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand
Balances with banks:
In eurrent accounts.

12 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent
In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months
but less than 12 months from balance shest date

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.34 0.57

8.84 38.53

10.28 40.10

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
47.80 B4.80

47.80 B4.80

13 Loan 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loan to KMP 22,50 "
Loan to employes 0.22 0.52
Total 22.72 0.52
Loans & advances to Directors/KMP/Related Parties as at 31 March 2022

Amount of loan or | Percentage to
advance in the the total Loans
nature of loan and Advances In

Type of Borrower outstanding the nature of
loans
Promoters - =
Directors 22,50 9%
KMPs - =
Related Parties - -

Leoans & advances to Directors/KMP/Related Parties as at 31 March 2021

Type of Borrower

Amaunt of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of logns

Fromoters

Directors

KMPs

Related Parties

14 Other financial assets
Government grants receivables
Interest accrued on deposits
Interest accrued on lean to director
Total

15 Other current assets
Advance recoverable in kind
Prepaid Expenses
Total

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

85.97 742
0.26 0.27
0.39 =

86.62 7.69

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

38.60 41.80
B.16 20.44
45.76 G2.24




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unlass otherwise stated)

16 Share capital
Autherized
1.60,00,000 (3% March 20:21:1,60,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
1,30,00,000 (31 March 2021 :1.30,00.000 CCPS (Compulsarly
Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 10 each
lssued, subseribed and paid up.
1,23.38,700 {31 March 2021: 1,23,38.700) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each each

1,28.48,221 {31 March 202‘ 1.28,48,221) 0.1% CCPS (Compulsarily
G F Shares) of Rs. 10 each

Total

{a} Reconciliation of equity shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

{i) Equity Shares

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Qutslanding at the end of the year

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year
Add; Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

(i) 0.1% C: Isoril i i Shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issuad during the y=ar
Dutstanding at the end of the year

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued dunng the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

{b) Rights, p and

to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled 1o one vols per shars held. Dividend if any
declared is payable in Indian Rupess. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirsctors is subject to the approval of the sharshalders in the ensuing Annual Gensral

Meeting.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
160.00 160.00
130.00 130,00
EXN 2000
123.39 12339
128.48 128.48
251.87 251.87

31 March 2021

Mumber of shares Amount
1234 12338
1234 12339
31 March 2022

Number of shares Amount
1234 12339
1234 123.38

31 March 2021

Number of shares Amount
12.85 128.48
12.85 128.48
31 March 2022

Number of shares Amount
12.85 128.48
12.85 128.48

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assels of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehclders.

(e} Rights, p and tached lo pref shares
The Company has only one class of Ci

Shares {CCPS) having par valus of Rs. 10 per share, Each sharehofder iz entitled 1o one

wvote per share held. Dividend if any declared is payabie in Induan Rupess. The dividend proposad by the Board of Direciors is subject 1o the approval of fhe

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The dividends would be cumulative and would be pald prior to payment of any dividend with respect 1o Equity Shares. The holders of CCPS shall have the right to
convert all or any poriion of the CCPS held by them &l any fime al conversion ratic of 1:1 into Equity Shares, prior to expiry of 12 years from the allotment of

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

Name of the shareholder 31 March 2021

31 March 2022

HNumber of % of holding in Numberof % of holding in the

shares the class shares class

Equity shares of INR 10 each

fully pald

Anadya Bon Merchad LLP 3.08 24.98% 3.08 24.98%
Ritum Jain 223 18.05% N 30.09%
Radiant Toddler Care Private Limi 1.95 15.78% 185 15.78%
Anadya Residency LLP 1.23 10.00% 123 10.00%
Rajneesh Jain 092 T.48% 0.92 T.40%

Rahul Bubna 0.83 6.69% 0.83 5.69%




Ewara Baby Products Private Limited
Naltes forming part of the Financial Statemants for the year ended 31 March 2623
(A3l amounts in Rupass millians, unless ctherwise stated)

17 Dther equity
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[8) Securities premium ($F)
Opering balance B71.07 12588
Add ! Securities premium crecod on 55U% of shares - 745.18
Clasing balancs BT1.07 BT1.07
(B) Surplus/|deficit) in the Statamant of Profit and Loss.
31 Mareh 2021
Opening beiance E
A Nel profil for the current year 1287
Otfee comprshensive income &
Clasing balance ST
Total other equity |a*B| 102374
31 March 2022 31 March 2031
18 Man-current borrowings
() Teem loan
Frem Bank
Secured hank laan 386,51 161,83
366,51 161,83
Less: Amaunt discloga undar the heed "Shod tenin borrowngs™ (Refer nate 21) 112748 162.12]
Tatal non current borrcwings 233,08 96.71
As 3t 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particidar Maturity Date Terms of Repayment Naturo of Security | Intarest Rate
Men Current Cueani Tod Nen Current Current Tots
Liasdlty Lisbaty Lisbley Listidty
LT T T w—
Term Loan 2661 N08173420001 14-Mer-23 | Monthiy Insssliment in § Yaars |1 Equitable Morizage | ge, - 11.65% 1.08 21.25 2233 2231 2135| 43ga]
Terrn Loan 4550 NOE 173640001 1£.Mar21 | Monthly Instafment in § Years gum‘-“ & 8% - 11.65% .08 125 131 131 135] gz
Terrn Losan 4501 NOB1B0S30001 1eMar2d | Monitly Instafiment i SYeMS |5 puyerom of fign|Bies 11.25% 438 150] 7.88 7.58 7.50 | 1533
| Tern Loan 285LNOS1805T0001 A&-har-23 | Manthly instafment in 5 Years | & feachinery of she B - 11450 013 250 263 2863 2.50 513
Term Loan 466U NOE180680001 16-Mar23 | Monthiy Instafiment in 5 Years | Company & Including | 8% 5% 013 250 263 263 250 513
Term Loan 453LNDE160340001 te-har2) | Monitty Ingtaiment in § Yoary |Assels Botn Bresont | g - vy.a5 013 250 281 261 250 &13
Tarm Loan 465LN0G 181410002 12lar2d | Monihly instalimant in 5 Years el B% - 11.45% 0,53 240 293 293 240 533
Tarm Loan 69LNDE191780001 27-5e0-24 | Monthiy Instaliment in 5 Years 8% - 11,85% 24,34 15,38 3973 3973 1538] 5511
Term Loan 4591 NDS191300001 27-Se0-24 | Monitéy Instaliment in § Years Bt - 11.45% 289 .25 1614 18,14 835| 2209
Term Loan SE0LNOS 182450001 37-Eep-24 | Monihily Ingtalment in 5 Years 8% - 11.45% 05| 0.5% 151 151 0.55 210
Term Loan QOTLNOET 11070002 1T-Apr-26 | Menthy in 5 Yaars T.50% 5443 | 20.50 8494 - - -
Tarm Lpan 007LND5Z 11740002 1T-ADR2S ¥ n & Years 750% 8635 | 21,52 87.85 - - -
Tarm Loan 007LNG62 13050001 17-Apr-26 | Monthiy Instalment in § Years. 7.50% 70.58 | 23.02 24.00 - - -
239,05 | 127,46 356.51 0.1 6212 | 16184
18 Provisions. Current Current Non-Current  Non-Currert
31 March 2022 37 March 2021 31 Mar 2022
Prosision for gratuity 008 000 218 (1]
Provision for compensation sbsences 0.05 o.M 028 815
Incoms ax provisaon 238 10.43 = =
Total provisions 243 10.52 2.41 083
0 Cithet nnneciernet lahitos 31 March 2022 21 March 2071
Government Grant 112.43 21.73
113.83 27.73
1 Shest -term borrawings 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sacured, frem bank, term lean
Current matirity of long form loans. 12746 6212
Intsrest accrued but not due an loan 1 R
Total short-term borrowings. m 122.97 E3.24
Mot Borrowings are subsequently measured al amorlised cost and Merelors inlerest
accrued on inchidad i pecih
22 Trade payables. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Told of micrn and sl 20.28 1661
Total auistanding duas of crecaors oiher 1han micro enternnses snd small enlerprises” 279,50 1
Tatal trada payatles im doa7e 20383
Trade payable sgeing schedule as 31 31 Mar 2022
iy [ e date ents Tetal
E ot due - Less than 1 year -2 yra. T yra. Wiors than T years |
- ; 113 [¥LH - - 79,28
ki & é& 76,54 0.12] ] G| 37950
. 2 =t S =
5 > 0 =] D >
T TE310 ITET] L4 oY T woeqa|
at 31 Mar 2021
Unbliod duss ot dun Less Than ¥ year Tiorg han 1 years Total
% < T TEET
5 - K i 16522 |
F; - = £
= : e T poarg D TmiT]
23 Other Fnancisl liabdities 31 March 2032 31 Mareh 2021
Ottr financial Rabdities 01 amartised cost
Iaterest on lean from Brainbees schutions pvi. Bd. 1.88 E
Capcal credtors 478 g4
Accrued employes ity 15,57 5.35
Tatal other financial iabilities iy 7234 0z
24 Other current liahilities 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Statuiory dus payable 462 o
Advvanize from customes 0.2 378
Governmanit grant 2547 &0
Refurd li 10,99 -
Tatal other current liabities #71.04 1285




Swara Baby Products Private Limited

Notes fi

ing part of the Fi 1al Si

25 Revenue from operations

Sale of products®
Sale of services
-Job work charges
Total

* Sale of preducts consist of:
(net of retumns, discounts, etc.)
Diapers *

Trading ltems

Othars

{a) Contract balances

(b)

2

2i

7

Contract assets.

Trade receivables
Contract liabllities
Advance from customer

R iliation of as in the

Profit & Loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price

Less: Sales retum

Less: Discount

Revenue as per Statement of Profit & Loss

Other income

Government grants and incentives

for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
318312 1,886.58
7288 4461
3256.10 1931.19
2,764.32 1.547.89
374.51 301.72
74.90 36.87
3213.73 1886.58

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

261.77 255.18
230.26 3.78
of 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
3,314.04 1,908.63
(20.62) (2.17)
(37.32) {20.45)
3256.10 1831.18
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

-Govemment grants are recognised when there is & ressonable assurance that the Company will comply with the relevant

conditions and the grant will be received.

-Government grants related to assets are deferred and amertised over the useful life of the assel. Government
grants related to income are deffarred an a systematic basis over the period of the grant,

Interest incama

= on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost

- Security deposits

- on govemment grant
Net gaini{ioss) on exchange diff
Deferred Income govemment grant
Miscellensous Income

Total

Caost of material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases”

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Less: Material captively used in Capital Projects
Cosl of raw material consumed

Purchase of stock in trade

* Includes packing matenal. Cusioms, Clearing Charges, Carrlage Inward, ete. incurred in order 1o bring the materials in its intended

use.

and translations

1.09 451
0.19 0.12
5.62 3.97
B.98 10.44
53.34 6.01
1.08 0.08
58.27 25.21
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
383,34 17113
2,342.48 1,320.04
(510.72) (383.34)
(14.65) -
2,200.45 1,107.83
2,200.45 1,107.83
275.81 258.81

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods

-Work-in-progress

-Stock-in-trade

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished goods

-Work-in-progress

~Stock-in-trade

Net decrease/ (increase)

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI

Staff welfare expenses

Total

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
34.79 50.85
345 0.76
= 2.64
38.24 54.25
108.49 3479
4.23 3.45
112.72 38.24
t?d.dﬂ 16.01
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
10291 67.65
3.53 275
2.43 1.48
108.87 71.88
ST —




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
MNotes farming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

30 Finance costs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interast en bomrowing 24.27 22.31
Processing charges 0.35 0.35
Bill discounting charges - 0.24
Others (commission an funding, Bank charges) 5.55 1.39
Interest Expenses on lease liability 0.69 0.25
Total - 30.86 24.54
# Interest expense capitalised during the the year is amount 6.54 million (31 March 2021:Nil)

31 Depreciation and amortization expense 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depraciation on property, plant and equipment 71.60 9.0
Amaortization on right to use assets 0.95 0.44
Total 72.55 39.45

32 Other expenses 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Power and fue! 42.88 2415
Consumption of stores & spares 11.03 13.15
Labour charges 57.72 3733
Manpower charges - 0.10
Freight & forwarding charges 46,11 36.06
Repairs and maintenance - athers 3.37 210
Rent 25.78 16.62
Rates and taxes 0.50 145
Vehicle running expenses 0.75 0.36
Travel and conveyanca 10.87 483
Postage and courier 0.85 0.33
Insurance 4.52 2.22
Printing & Stationery 0.73 0.42
Ci ion, b band and intemet 0.54 0.29
Security Expenses. 5.08 2,98
Legal and professional charges® 13.22 9.84
Advertisement 58.05 60.88
Miscellaneous expenses 23.94 13.48
Total 305.94 226.66

“Mote : Payment to auditors includes

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

As auditor:

Statutory audit 0.75 0.85
Other audit services 1.30 -

In other capacity: - -
Tax audit 0.05 0.05
Reimbursement of axpensas 0.15 0.05
Total 2.25 1.05

= e




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

33 Income Tax
(&) Deferred tax relates to the following:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferrad tax assets

On unabsorbed depreciation and cary forward businass losses -
On disallowance w's 438 0.63 0.25
On preliminary expendilure w's 350 -

0.63 0.25
Deferred tax liabilities
On excess depreciation claimed in Income-tax Act, 1981 55.74 45.29
impact on right to use assets (0.50) 1.48
55.24 47,77
Deferred tax income (54.61) (47.52)
Less: Deferred tax asset not recognized =
Deferred tax liability (54.61) (47.52)
(B} Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability
Balance sheet 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defered tax asset 0.63 0.25
Deferred tay liabilities (55.24) {A7.77)
Deferred tax assats! (liabilities), net (54.61) (47.52)
[C) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net): 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance as of 1 April (47.52) (10.42)
Tax liability recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (7.08) (37.09)
Closing balance as al 31 March (54.61) {47.51)
(D) Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) to be recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss 21 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tax Rability (7.47) {37.21)
Tax asset 0.38 0.12
Deferred tax liability to be recognized (7.09) {37.08)
(E) Income tax expense 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Current tax taxes B3TT 47.42
- Deferred tax charge / {income) 7.09 37.09
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or less 90.86 84.51
{F) Reconciliation of tax charge 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 404.37 211.22
Income tax expense at lax rates applicable 101.76 53.16
Tax effects of:
- ltem not deductible for tax (14.29) (3.23)
- Other income not fiable to tax {3.70) (2.51)

Income lax expenss 8377 47.42




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in Rupees milllons, unless otherwise stated)

34 Earnings! Loss per share

Basic eamings per share amounts are calculaled by dividing the profitioss for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diuted EPS

computations:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit attributable 1o equity holders 313.43 126,71
Profit attributable 1o equity holders after preference dividend 313.43 126.71
Praoft atributable 1o equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution 313.43 126.71
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 1234 1234
Basic earning per share (INR) 25.40 1027
Weighted average number of equity shares for diuted EPS 25.19 2109
Diuted aarning per share [INR} 1244 801
15 Employee benefits
(A} Defined Contribution Plans
During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounis in the
Statement of Proft and Loss - 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Empgloyers’ Contribulien 1o Provident Fund and Employea State Insurance (Refer
note 29) 3.53 2.75
(B) Defined benef plans

a) Gratuity payable to employses 2 083
b) Comp for Emplay 0.31 0.18

I} Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate {per annum) 6.65% 6.26%
Rate of increass in Salary 10% 0%
Expected average remaining working 633 Yrs 6Yrs
Aftrition rata 14% 4%

i} Changes In the present value of defined benefit abligation

Employes’s gratuity fund
__ 31 March2022 - _31March2021

Present value of obligation at the 0.e3
beginning of the year =
Interest cost 0.05 -
Past senice cost -
Currenl service cost 125 083
Curiaiments . =
Setlemenls -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial (gain) loss on obligations 0.08 -
Prasent value of obligation at the and of the year 231 083

E) E ized in the S of Profit and Loss Employee's gratuity fund
__3\March2022 31 March2021

Current senvice cost 125 0.83

Past service cost - -

Intetest cost 0.05

Expected return on plan assets - <

Actuarigl (gain) / loss on obligations - =

Settlements -

Curtailments = -

Total ized in the Profit and Loss 1.30 0.83

W] Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet: Employee's gratuity fund
__3iMarch2022 _ _31Marcn2021

Pregant value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 221 043

u gnized actuarial (gains)) - *

Unfunded net asset ! [liability) recognized in Balance Sheet* 2.21 0.83

*Incleded in provision for employes benafits (Refer nate 18)

Amounts to be recognised in Balance Sheet 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gratuity

Non-current 245 0.83

Current 0.06 0.00
2.21 0.83




Swara Baby Products Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

vl A iviry analysis for sigl
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate
1% increasa
1% decrease

Rate of increass in salary
1% increase
1% decrease

Wil Malurity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year

Apr 2021- Mar 2022

Apr 2022- Mar 2023

Apr 2023 - Mar 2024

Apr 2024- Mar 2025

Apr 2025- Mar 2026

Ape 2026 - Mar 2021

Apr 2031 onwards

Malurity profile of defined banefit obligation
Year

Apr 2022- Mar 2023

Apr 2023- Mar 2027

Agpr 2027- Mar 2032

Apr 2032 onwards

36 Related Party Disclosures:
| Names of related parties and of

as at 31 March 2022 is as shown belaw:
Employee's gratuity fund

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
018 oor
0.21 0.08
0.20 oo7
0.18 0.07

Employee's gratuity fund

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- 0.00
- 0.00
- 0.04
- 0.05
- 0.1
% 0.51
- 085

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
078 -
1.1 -
226 -

pas and certified by the Company:

Parent Company
Branbees Selutions Privale Limited

Enterprises over which KMP/Diractor and

Mature of relationship

of KMF
influence
Shantinath Deterpents Pu Lid Entities over which a direclor has significant influence
KA Enterprises Entities over which a director has significant influence
Anadya Baby Froduets LLP Entities over which a dirsctor has sianificant influence
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name Nature of relationshio
Ritun Jain Director
Rahul Bubna Director (L1 24 Asri 2020}
Alok Birla Managing Director
Supam Maheshwani Diractor
Gautam Sharma Director
Sannita Birla Director
Prashan! Prakash Jadhav Director
Rucha Pandey Company Secratary

Il Summary of the transactions with related parties is as follows ;

Parent Company 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Sale of products 1,039.95 440.60

Issue of C: 0.1% C: e M P Shares

of Ra 10 Each - 12848

Sacurity Premimum on isse of 0.1% 0.1% C N lative Prafs

shares - T4518

Loan receved 50,00 -

Loan repaid 50.00 -

over which KMF and of

KMP/Director exercises significant influence 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Sale of products 10.33 812

Business Suoport Services 3.30 308

Purchases B.09 0.02
Il Disclosure in respoct of all related party transactions:

Sale of products
Brainbee Solution Pyt Lid
KA Enterprises

Businass Support Services
Anadva Baby Producls LLP
Shantnath Deteraents Pvt Ltd

Purchase
KA Entarprises.

Leoan Received
Brainbee Solution Pvi Lid

Lean Pald
Brainbea Solution Pyt Ltd

Key Management Personnel (KMP}

of key
Alok Brla
Rucha Pandey

Lean
Alok Birla

Interest on Loan
Alok Birla

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1.039,98

440,60
10.33 812
3.00 210
0.30 0.85
B.08 0.2
50,00 -
50.00 =
20,00 13.00
068 013
22.50 -
0.39




Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year endad 31 March 2022

IV Amount due to/from related party as on:

k)

Parant Company 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advance recaived 2268.07 1.74
Interest on loan 1.88 -

Entity under common contral®

Trade Payable

Shantinath Datergents Pvt Ltd 0.03 0.08
Trade Recivable

KA Enterprises 1.18 -
Key Managemeant Personnel (KMP}
Employee related payables 5.00 0.57
Loan 22.89 -

Noie: All transactions with these refated parties are priced on an arm’s length basss.

Segment reperting

The C s £ relate to manufacturing and sale of diapers. The Chiel Operating Decision Maker
tCDOM! reviaws the operations of the Cornpany as one operaling segment. Hence no saparate segmen| informaltion has been
fumnished herewith,

Tha Company zes lls revenue by geographical region, as ized below, which 23 per management is most
appropriale:
Revenug from operations
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount (INR| % Ameunt [INR

Fram India 3,256.10 100% 1.928.24 S0.85%
From foreign countries - 0% 2.85 0.15%

3,256.10 100% 1.931.19 100%:

Capital managemant

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes isswved equity capital, convertible preference shares.
share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objectve of tha Company's capial
isto imize the ider valua and to ensure the Company's ability o continue as a going concern.

The Company has not distributed any dividend to its shareholders. The Company monfors geanng ﬁbu ie. total debt in proportion
fo s overall rnanung slructure, ie. equity and debt Tetal dabt of =11 g which rep ligbility
Shares and current barrawing from ultimate huMmg Dumparvy of the Company. The
Company managss tha capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underying assats.

__31March2022 31 March 2021
Equity 1,594.03 1.280.61
Total equiy (i 1.594.03 1,280.61
ings other than shares 3E69.02 162.85
Less: Cash ana casn equivalents 10.28 4010
Total debt () 358.74 122.86
Quverall financing (i) = (i) + (i) 1,952.77 140346

Gearing ratia () (&} 0,18 o.09
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39 Fair value measurements
A Fi ts by

e
instr g

due to short term mat of these ir

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as on 31 March 2022

¥
Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximates their camrying amounts largely

Financial assets/ liabilities at
fair value through profit or

Financial assets/ liabilities at faid
value through OCI

loss
Am Total carryi )
Note ::;fea Designated Equity instruments otav:lau;y "9 | Total fair value
upon initial Mandatory | designated upon | Mandatory
recognition initial recognition
Financial assets:
Security Deposits 7 7.56 - - - - 7.56 -
Others 7 0.07 - - - - 0.07 -
Trade receivables 10 261.77 - - - - 261.77 -
Cash and cash equivalents 11 10.28 - - = = 10.28 =
Other bank balances 12 47.80 - - - - 47.80 -
327.49 - - - - 327.48 -
Financial lisbilities:
Lease liability 1 6.92 - - - - 6.92 -
Borrowings 18.21 369.02 - - - - 369.02 -
Employee benefit obligations 18 4.90 - - - - 4.90 -
Trade payables 22 308.78 - - - - 308.78 -
Other financial liabilities 23 22.34 - - = = 22.34 =
711.96 - - - - 711.96 -
The carrying value and fair value of fi ial instr ts by categories as on 31 March 2021
Financial assets/ liabilities X i
2 Financial assets/ liabilities at
at fair value ?trsosugh profit or fair value through OCI
i Total in -
Note Amg:;fd Designated Equity instruments otav:la:z 9 | Total fair value
upon initial Mandatory designated upon | Mandatory
recognition initial recognition
| Financial assets:
Security Deposits 7 3.31 - - - - .31 -
Others 7 0.07 - - - - 0.07 -
Trade recelvables 10 255.18 - - - - 255.18 -
Cash and cash equivalents 11 4010 - - - - 40,10 -
Other bank balances 12 84.80 - - - - 84.80 -
38345 - - - - 383.45 #
Financial liabilities:
Lease liability & 6.92 # 5 - = 6.92 -
Borrowings 18,21 161.83 - - - - 161.83 ®
Employee benefit obligations 19 11.50 - - - - 11.50 -
Trade payables 22 202.83 - - - - 202.83 -
Other financial liabilities 23 10.42 - - - - 10.42 -
393.51 - - - - 383.51 -
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Fi ial instr - Risk

Fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadj i} in active for i ical assets or
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted pricas included within Level 1 that are observatle for the asset or liability, either directly (e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from pricas).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company does not have assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Fi ial risk fi k

A fi ial risk fr: rk is in place in the form of & treasury policy approved by board of directors of holding company which has been adopled by the Company. In
accordance with its treasury policy, the Company actively monitars and manages financial risk with the abjectives of reducing ions in reported earnings and cash flows from these
risks and providing economic prolection against cost increases. These objectives are achieved through :a} an assessment of the impact of market risks against defined risk limits, which
take into account the risk appetite of the Company and (b) the use of a variety of derivative and o ive financial i s, This policy alse guides the manner of investing the
surplus funds of the Company. Also, the Company has a Trade Finance Credit policy which guides on managing the customer credit limits.

Financial risk factors:

The nature of the Company's business exposes it to a range of financial risks. These risks Include:

(i) market risks, which include potential unfaverable changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, commadity prices and other market prices,
(i) credit risk and

(i) iquidity and refinancing risk.

(i) Market risk factors:
Foreign exchange risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in marke! prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices \MH affact the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial

instruments. The cbjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within p p . while optimising the retumn.

The foliowing table analyzés the Company's foreign currency risk exp as a result of fi ial inst ts designated in major foreign currencies as at 31 March 2022
U.S. dollars INR Total
Trade receivables 0.0000 0.0031 0.0031
Trade payables (0.0015) (0.1101) (0.1101)
(0.0014) (0.1070) (0.1084)

The following table analyzes the Company's foreign currency risk exposure as a result of financial instruments designated in major foreign currencies as at 31 March 2021
U.S. dellars INR Total
Trade receivables 0.0021 0.1500 0.1500
Trade payables 0.2510 18.3820 18.3820
0.2531 18.5320 18.7851

Interest rate risk:
The Company’s borrowings carry a fixed rate of interest and are measured at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate due to change in market interest rates.

{ii) Credit risk:
Credit risk arises from the ibility that fies involved in U tions with the Company may default on their obligation, resulting in financial losses to the Company. Credit risk
relates both to financial assets as well as to aperaticnal assets managed by the Company’s businesses (such as trade receivables, security deposits).

The Company has policies and operating guidelines in place to ensure that financial instrument transactions and bank deposit transactions are only entered into with high credit quality

banks and financial institutions.

The credit risk to opemunnal asssts is managed through the use of credit limits based on credit worthiness and business capabiliies of the customers. The credit risk is alsa partially
ig through ies, which include cash sales incentives and obtaining other security from customers where appropriate.

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss mods! to assess the impairment loss of trade receivables.

Expected credit loss for trade Ivables and security deposits as al 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
The management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for cradi hiness before the Company's pay and delivery lerms
and conditions are offered.

The trade receivables are subject to low credit risk since the counterparty has strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is negligible or nil based on the
Company's past experience. Hence, no provision has been created for Expected credit loss for credit risk arising from these financial assets.

{iil) Liquidity risk:
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the current
working capital s sufficient to meet its current obli y requirements. A gly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

As on 31 March 2022, the Company had a working capital as follows

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current assels 1,117.47 878.35
Current kabiities 73531 300.56
Working capital 38247 577.79
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The table below providas details regarding the o ities of significant financial liabilites as of 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021,
As at 31 March 2022
c | cash flows
Particulars C T
B Front Less than 1 year 1-3 years Wicea than 3 otal
Yyears
Trade payables 308.78 308.78 - - 308.78
Lease liabilities 692 0.69 1.39 4.84 6.92
Borrowing 369.02 13232 165.92 T0.78 369.02
Other financial liabilities 22.34 22.34 - - 22.34
As at 31 March 2021
Contractual cash flows
Particulars Carryi t Total
anying amoin Less than 1 year 1-3 years Wore than 3
years
Trade payables 202,83 202.83 - - 202.83
Lease liabilities 6,92 0.68 1.39 4.84 6.892
Borrowing 162.95 62.12 100.83 - 162.95
Other financial liabilities 10.42 10.42 - - 10.42

Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 ('MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED

Act are as follows:

i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Principal amount payable to suppliers as at year end 29.28 16.61
b} Interest due thereon as at year end * NIL NIL
c) Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to provisions of MSMED Act actually paid during the NIL NIL
year, imespective of the year to which interest relates
d) Ameunt of delayed payments actually made to suppliers during the year 2491 51.32
e} Amount of interast due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the 0.30 0.30
appointed day during the year) but without adding interest specified under the MSMED Act ~
f} Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year™ 0.30 0.30
g} The amaount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006 *

** Above interest amounts have not been provided in the books.
The Company has piled this ir ion bazed on i ived from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small E izes and/ or its

with the appropriate

authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises D o t Act, 2006

Contingent liabilities and commitments

i. Contingent liabilities

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Suprame Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 2019, relating fo the employer's contrib

of pi it fund under the

Emplayees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1852. The Company has also obtained a legal opinion on the matter and basis the same the company has assessed and

implemented the recent SC judgement prospectively from March 2019 onwards, The Company would record any further effect on its

fram the relevant authorities on the subject.
ii. a) Commitments

The estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Tangible assets (Net of advances) 130.24 71.78

Total 130.24 7178

on iving additional clarity
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b) Other commitments

The Company has imported certain machinery under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme and accordingly has an export obligation of amount 571.75 million {March 31,
2021 : Rs. Nil). In this respect the Company has given Bond of amaunt 101,67 million (March 31, 2021 :Rs. Nil) to the Commissioner of Customs.

Unfulfilled export oblig
Export obligation
Yearoffuane fobe fulllled tll | g 4t31 March2022 |  Asat31 March 2021
Millions. Millions.
2021-2022 2027-2028 571.75 NA
2020-2021 MA MA NA

43 Corporate Social Responsibility
The areas for CSR activities are promoling education, healthcare and ensuring enviranmental sustainability. Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schadule VIl of
the Companies Act 2013 are as mentioned below :

Particul; 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) amount required to be spent by the company during the
year, 1.70 D.28
(b) amount of expenditure incurred till date 1.98 &
For F.Y: 2021-22 1.70 =
For F.Y: 2020-21 0.28 =
Paid
(i) Construction/acguisition of asset = -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 1.98 -
Yet to be paid
(i) Construction/acquisition of asset = -
(ii} On purposes other than (i) above * s
Total (b 1.98 -
0.28

(¢} shortfall at the end of the year, =

Due to first wave of Covid-19 pandemic
|striking in India in Financial Year 2020-21,
the operations of the Company were
{affected and hence Company did not
spend the specified amount 0.28 million
on any of the CSR activities.

{d) reason for shertfall,

|(e) total of previous years shortfall,

&) Rajasthan gokalyan
b) PM care fund -
¢} Umeed health & medicare hospital
d) Round table india trust

(f) nature of CSR actvities,

44 Code of Social Security

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the confributions by the Indian companies in the group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity.
The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are
under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial
slatements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published,
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45  Ratio analysis & calculation

1 Current ratio

Ratio

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current assets 1,417 878
Current liabilities 735 301
1.52 292
Change from 31 March 2021 -48%

Reason for more than 25% change

March 2022 vs March 2021 ;

2 Debt- Equity ratio

Company got the equity investment of Rs. 870
million in F.Y 20-21 for expansion activities and
initally fund was invested in current assets ie.
stock fixed deposits, trade receivables ete. and in
F.Y 21-22 the same fund was utillized for property
plant and equipment hence current ratio has reduced.

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Debt 369 162
Equity 1,594 1.281
Ratio 0.23 0.13
Change from 31 March 2021 83%

Reason for more than 25% change

March 2022 vs March 2021 :

3 Debt service coverage ratio

Company obtained 3 additional term loans from
HDFC bank during the year for 3 additional
machineries capitalized during the year.

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Eamings available for debt service 417 191
Debt service 138 72
Ratio 3.01 2.65
Change from 31 March 2021 13%

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit for the year* 314 127
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense 73 39
Add: Finance costs 31 25
Earning available for debt service 417 181
Finance cost 31 25
Lease payment 1 1
Principal repayment 107 47
Total interest and Principal repayment 138 72
Ratio 3.01 2.65

4 Return on equity (ROE)

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net Profit (After Tax} 314 127
Op. Shareholder Equity 1,281 280
Cl. Shareholder Equity 1,594 1,281
Avg Shareholder's Equity 1,437 780
Ratio 0.22 0.18
Change from 31 March 2021 34%

Reason for more than 25% change

March 2022 vs March 2021 :

Sales in the current year has increased due to over
all increase in market demand and to cater the same
there has been significant capitalization of proparty,
plant and equipment during the year which led to
increase in the net profit of the company.
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5 Inventory turnover ratio
Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sales 3,256 1,931
Opening inventory 428 228
Closing inventory 643 428
Average inventory 535 327
Ratio 6.08 5.91
Change from 31 March 2021 3%
6 Trade receivables turnover ratio
Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Credit sales 3,256.10 1,931.19
Opening accounts receivables 255.18 B81.24
Closing accounts receivables 261.77 255.18
Average accounts receivables 258.48 168.21
Ratio 12.60 11.48
Change from 31 March 2021 10%
7 Trade payables turnover ratio
Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net credit purchases 2,342 1,579
Opening trade payables 212 140
Closing trade payables 309 212
Average trade payables 281 176
Ratio 8.99 8.98
Change from 31 March 2021 0.32%
8 Net capital turnover ratie
Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net sales 3,256 1,831
Current assels 1,117 878
Current lishilities 735 301
Working capital 382 578
Ratio 8.52 3.34
Change from 31 March 2021 155%

Reason for more than 25% change

Sales in the current year has increased due to over
all increase in market demand and to cater the same
March 2022 vs March 2021 : there has been significant capitalization of property,
plant and equipment during the year which led to

increase in the net profit of the company.

9 Net profit ratio

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net profit (after tax) 314 127
Met sales 3,256 1,931
Ratio 0.10 0.07
Change from 31 March 2021 47%

Reason for more than 25% change

Sazles in the current year has increased due to over
all increase in market demand and to cater the same
there has been significant capitalization of property.
plant and equipment during the year which led to
increase in the net profit of the company. e

March 2022 vs March 2021 :
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10 Return on capital employed

Particular 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EBIT 435 236
Capital employed 2,018 1,490
Ratio 0.22 0.16
Change from 31 March 2021 36%

Reason for more than 25% change

Sales in the current year has increased due to over
all increase in market demand and to cater the same
there has been significant capitalization of property,
plant and equipment during the year which led to
increase in the net profit of the company

The company has availed additional borrowings
during the year for machinaries capitalized during

March 2022 vs March 2021 :

the year.
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 404.37 211.22
Add: Finance costs 30.86 24.54
Adjusted EBIT 435.23 235.76
Total equity 1,594.03 1,280.61
Deferred tax liability 54.61 47.52
Non-current borrowings 239.05 99.71
Current borrowings 129.97 62.12
Total debt 369.02 161.84
Adjusted EBIT 435.23 235.76
Capital Employed 2,017.67 1,489.96
Ratio 0.22 0.18 r i
P S
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(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

a6 Borrowings secured against current assets

The earrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current barrowings are:

Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 10 261.77 255.18
Non Financial Assets
Inventories
a) Raw malterial 2] 510.72 383.35
b) Finished Goods 2] 108.49 34.79
c) WIP 9 423 3.45
d) Stores & Spares g9 18.07 5.23
Total current assets pledged as security 904.29 683.00
Non Current
Non Financial Assets
Buildings 5 234.77 | 87.53
Plant & Machineries 87213 297.25
Total non current assets pledged as security 1,106.90 384.78
Total assets pledged as security 2,011.19 1,067.79
g Amount as
Particulars of Amount as per
Quarter Name of bank| Securities books of rep:rt:d i"tmeF "::l;;’"m ot Reason for material discrepancies
Provided account SUARATY. IRt nerence
statement
-Goods sold but material in transit
amount Rs. 5.78 million.
31March 2022 | HDFC Bank | Finished Goods 108.49 102.50 5.99
- Change of amount Rs. 0.20
million is due to revised valuation.
-Goods in transit amount Rs.43.50
million.
31 March 2022 HDFC Bank Raw material 510.72 474.75 35.97
-Change of amount Rs.(7.52) million
is due to revised valuation.
~Goods sold but material in transit
amount Rs.(6.96) million.
31 March 2022 HDFC Bank | Trade receivables 261.77 267.79 (6.01)
~Change of amount R5.0.85 million
due to update in classification.
. Amount as
Particulars of Amount as per
Quarter Name of bankj Securities books of repnrl:d I th:ﬁ ..:u:faunt o Reason for material discrepancies
Provided account Auattesly relu frerence
statement
31 December 2021 | HDFC Bank | Finished Goods 74.11 71.53 2.59 |Goods sold but material in transit.
-Deduction from receivables on
account of goods in transit amount
31 December 2021 | HDFC Bank | Trade receivables 267.63 269.33 {i70y| 52 .01 millipn.

-Change of amount Rs. (2.61)
million due to update in
classification.
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3 Amount as
Particulars of | Amount as per x
Quarter Name of bank|  Securities bigiaor: | JoEoftedinfie | Adountol | for I discreg
Provided acsoint quarterly return/ difference
statement
31 March 2021 HDFC Bank | Finished Goods 3473 30.88 3.90 | Goods sold but material in transit.
31 March 2021 HDFC Bank Raw material 38334 335.59 47.75 |Goods in transit
. Deduction from receivables on
31 March 2021 HDFC Bank | Trade receivables 255.18 263.99 (8.81) sccount of goods Tn iransit,
Particulars of | Amount as per mAm:udnf a;;h X f
Quarter Name of bank| Securities books of pRrlac n e Z o for ial discrep
Provided acehant quarterly return/ difference
31 December 2020 | HDFC Bank | Finished Goods 31.63 29.56 2.08 | Goods sold but material in transit.
31 December 2020 | HDFC Bank Raw material 352,16 321.96 30.20 |Goods in transit.
Deduction from receivables on
31 December 2020 | HOFC Bank | Trade receivables 249.69 252.26 {2.57) aiccount of goods in transit
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Additional Notes

47 Government grant

4

[ S R

MPIDC

1. Company got sanclion from Madhya Pradesh Industrial Development Corporation for establisment of main (Investment) unit in F.Y 2018-19 amount Rs. 51.90 million. Till .Y
2021-22 amount Rs. 22.76 million has been received, in P&L amount Rs.18.50 million recognized during the year.

2. Company got sanction from Madhya Pradesh Industrial Development Corporation for Investment puprose (first expansion) in F.Y 2019-20 amount Rs. 82.56 million. Til F.¥
2021-22 amount Rs. 23.58 million has been received, in P&L amount Rs. 29.97 million recegnized during the year.

TUFS
3. Company got sanction under Technolegy Upgradation Fund Scheme for Machine 2 in F.Y 2020-21 amount Rs. 22.65 million full amount has been received during the year, in
P&L amount Rs. 6.17 million recognized during the year.

4. Company has applied for grant under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for Machine 3, 4 and 5 in F.Y 21-22 amount Rs. 80.08 million reasonable certainity has been
established but as on 31 March, 2022 company has not received the grant, In P&L amount Rs. 7.28 million recognized during the year.

Other statutory information:

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company has no lransactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virual Currency during the financial year.

The Campany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such fransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incoma Tax Act, 1961

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or government ar any government authority.

The Company does not hold any i in any subsidiary. Hence, requirement to comply with number of layer of companies as per Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any sch of arrang which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) or Intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.
The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purposa for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
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Additional Notes

49 Reclassification juent to

of Schedule Il

Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule ll The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule Ill to the Ci

Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021 to

increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These amendments are effective from 1 April 2021, Consequant to above, the
company has changed the classification/presentation of (i) current maturities of long-term borrowings (i) Loans to employees and KMP, in the current year. The current maturities
of long-term borrowings (including interest accrued) has now been included in the “Current borrewings” line item. Previously, current maturities of long-term borrowings and
interest accrued were included in ‘Other financial liabilities’ line item. Further, loans to employees and KMP (which meet the definilion of a financial assst as per Ind AS 32) have
been included in "Loan’ line item. Previously, these loans were included in ‘Other current assets’ line item. The company has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with
current year preseniation as per the requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact of such classifications is summarized below:

31 March 2021 Increase/ 31 March 2021
Balance sheet (extract)
(as previously
reported) (Decrease) (Restated)
Loans (current) - 0.52 0.52
Current borrowing e 63.24 63.24
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